
City of Capitola Agenda

Mayor: Yvette Brooks

Vice Mayor: Sam Storey

Council Members: Margaux Keiser

Jacques Bertrand

Kristen Petersen

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2021

7 PM

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Kristen Petersen, Jacques Bertrand, Margaux Keiser, Sam Storey, and 
Mayor Yvette Brooks

2. PRESENTATIONS

Presentations are limited to eight minutes.

A. Introduce New Employee Senior Mechanic Gabe Cuzick 

B. Presentation of Capitola Police Department Officer of the Year Award 

3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
February 11, 2021

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 2/5/2021 2:16 PM

4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Please review the Notice of Remote Access for instructions.

6. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS

City Council Members/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or identify issues 
for staff response or future council consideration. No individual shall speak for more than 
two minutes.

7. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the City Council request specific items to be 
discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the January 28, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

B. Planning Commission Action Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes. 

C. Approval of City Check Registers Dated January 8, January 15, January 22 and 
January 29. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers.

D. Amend the Conflict of Interest Code to Reflect Current Organizational Structure 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve resolution.

E. Receive Update on Pandemic Response 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the 
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to 
continue action.

8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision.

A. Capitola Historical Museum 2020 Annual Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
February 11, 2021

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 2/5/2021 2:16 PM

B. Local Early Action Planning Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
Contract 
RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council:

1. Receive an update on the City’s Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) Grant Projects.
2. Authorize the City Manager to enter an agreement with Economic and Planning 

Systems, Inc in the amount of $40,890 for the LEAP grant project to prepare a 
residential nexus study and a housing fee feasibility analysis. 

3. Approve a resolution to amend the City budget to include the $65,000 grant award.

C. Receive a Presentation on the Rispin Park Project and Approve a Resolution 
Authorizing the Public Works Department to Submit a Grant Application to California 
State Parks 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the proposed conceptual plan for the Rispin 
Park Project and adopt the proposed resolution authorizing the submission of an 
application to California State Parks for Proposition 68 Park Development Funds with 
awarded funds to be used for the project.

9. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS
In accordance with the current Santa Cruz County Health Order outlining social distancing 
requirements and Executive Order N-29-20 from the Executive Department of the State of 
California, the City Council meeting is not physically open to the public and in person 
attendance cannot be accommodated. 

To watch:
• Online http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx
• Spectrum Cable Television channel 8

To join Zoom:
• Join the Zoom Meeting with the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85476122641?pwd=aXN0MitHMVMyUU9wTkZ3bS96LzVxZz09
• If prompted for a passcode, enter 517808

• -OR- With a landline or mobile phone, call one of the following numbers:
o 1 669 900 6833

1 408 638 0968
1 346 248 7799

• Enter the meeting ID number: 854 7612 2641

• When prompted for a Participant ID, press #

To submit public comment: 
When submitting public comment, one comment (via phone or email, not both), per person, per 
item is allowed. If you send more than one email about the same item, the last received will be 
read. 

1. Zoom Meeting (Via Computer or Phone) Link:
A. IF USING COMPUTER: 
§ Use participant option to “raise hand” during the public comment period for 

the item you wish to speak on. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes 
to speak

A. IF CALLED IN OVER THE PHONE: 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
February 11, 2021

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 2/5/2021 2:16 PM

§ Press *9 on your phone to “raise your hand” when the mayor calls for public 
comment. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes to speak

1. Send Email: 
A. During the meeting, send comments via email to 

publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us  
§ Emailed comments on items will be accepted after the start of the meeting 

until the Mayor announces that public comment for that item is closed.
§ Emailed comments should be a maximum of 450 words, which corresponds 

to approximately 3 minutes of speaking time.
§ Each emailed comment will be read aloud for up to three minutes and/or 

displayed on a screen.
§ Emails received by publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us outside of the comment 

period outlined above will not be included in the record.

Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall prior to 
the meeting. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, 
Capitola. Need more information? Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting 
Agendas/Videos.” Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at any time.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Introduce New Employee Senior Mechanic Gabe Cuzick

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: The Public Works Department is happy to introduce new Senior 
Mechanic Gabe Cuzick. 

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Presentation of Capitola Police Department Officer of the Year Award

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: Each year, several members of the Police Department are 
nominated for the prestigious Herb Ross Award, which honors and recognizes one individual for 
his/her work performance and contributions to the community. The supervisory group is tasked 
with reviewing all nominations and selecting the honoree. 

The Capitola Police Department is proud to announce Detective Brantly Sandretti as the 
recipient of the 2020 Herb Ross Officer of the Year Award. Detective Sandretti is truly the 
definition of a “home-grown” employee in the City of Capitola. Brantly began his law 
enforcement career by joining the ranks of the Capitola Police Explorer Program in 2009.  Since 
that pivotal year, he has worked in the following assignments; 

· 2011-2013 Parking Enforcement Officer 
· 2013-2015 Community Service Officer 
· 2015-2018 Police Officer 
· 2018-current Police Detective  

Detective Sandretti has always maintained an approachable, calm demeanor and a very strong 
work ethic. During this past year, Detective Sandretti has significantly complemented the 
Department’s Criminal Investigation Unit (CIU) by taking a leadership role within the unit. 
Brantly’s CIU responsibilities include case management and follow-up, crime trend analysis, 
response to incidents requiring specialized training, and crime scene management and 
processing.  Brantly has investigated complex cases involving property crimes, financial crimes, 
sexual assault, and violent crime against individuals. Detective Sandretti has used his 
experience and expertise to successfully prosecute many cases through his methodical work 
with the District Attorney’s Office.  

In addition to his current assignment, Brantly has the following ancillary duties; Police Explorer 
Advisor, Firearms Instructor, Less-Lethal Instructor, and Field Training Officer (FTO). In 2016, 
Detective Sandretti was voted by his peers to represent them as Vice President of the Capitola 
Police Officers’ Association. 

Detective Sandretti is an asset to this community and the City of Capitola. It is a great honor to 
present Detective Sandretti with this recognition and award for his outstanding service to the 
citizens of Capitola.        

2.B

Packet Pg. 6



Presentation- CPD Officer of the Year 
February 11, 2021

Report Prepared By:  Terry McManus
Police Chief

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

2.B

Packet Pg. 7



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the January 28, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review and approval are the minutes of the regular meeting 
on November 24, 2020. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 1-28-2021 draft

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.A

Packet Pg. 8



DRAFT CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES 
THURSDAY, JANUARY 28, 2021 - 7 PM 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Mayor Brooks called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 

Council Member Margaux Keiser: Remote, Council Member Jacques Bertrand: Remote, Vice Mayor Sam 
Storey: Remote, Council Member Kristen Petersen: Remote, Mayor Yvette Brooks: Remote. 

No members of the public were present, and the Council adjourned to the virtual meeting with the 
following items to be discussed in Closed Session:

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

(Gov’t Code § 54957.6) 

A. Negotiators: Jamie Goldstein, Larry Laurent, Samantha Zutler
Employee Organizations: (1) Association of Capitola Employees; (2) Police Captains;
3) Mid-Management Group; (4) Department Heads; (5) Confidential Employees; (6)
Capitola Police Officers Association

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL - 7 PM 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Introduce New Employee Senior Mechanic Gabe Cuzick – item continued

B. Introduce New Employee Deputy City Clerk Edna Basa

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION – no action taken

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS – two materials regarding Item 9.B

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA – none

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Raymon Cancino (Community Bridges) invited Council and the community to a COVID-19 vaccination 
forum, organized with Spanish speakers in mind, on February 23.  

7. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS

Public Works Director Jesberg said that Soquel Creek opened at midnight on Tuesday and is currently at 
1700 cubic feet. There has been some localized flooding, but responsive crews have ensured there is no 
damage.   

Clerk Woodmansee announced a minor correction in the January 11, 2021, minutes for approval on this 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
8-

20
21

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
January 28, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 2/1/2021 2:40 PM 

evening’s agenda. 

City Manager Goldstein clarified that in Item 8.D, the Wharf House’s rent will not be waived for all of 
February, as the Stay Home Order was lifted prior to that month.   

Council Petersen thanked Public Works staff for their work during the recent storms. 

Future Items:  
1) Address the full Village garbage cans (Mayor Brooks)
2) Prior to Council once again discussing outdoor dining encroachment permits in May, ask the BIA

to survey businesses regarding how outdoor dining has impacted restaurants (Mayor Brooks)
3) Schedule time for Council to prioritize budget goals prior to budget adoption hearings (Mayor

Brooks)

8. CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTION: APPROVE AS RECOMMENDED  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

SECONDER: Sam Storey, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

A. Approval of Successor Agency Check Register January 1 - December 31, 2020[780-
30]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Acting as the City Council and Successor Agency,
approve the 2020 Successor Agency check register.

B. Consider Approval of the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for July 1, 2021,
to June 30, 2022 (ROPS 21-22)[780-30]

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Acting as the City Council and Successor Agency,
approve the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule.

C. Consider the January 14, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

D. Wharf House Lease - 3rd Amendment
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the third Amendment to the Wharf House
restaurant lease. 

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Receive Update on Pandemic Response and a Presentation from Director of Santa
Cruz County Health Services Agency Mimi Hall
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 1) Make the determination that all hazards related to the
worldwide spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168
adopted by the City Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to
continue action; and 2) Receive presentation on COVID-19 Pandemic in Santa Cruz
County from Director of Santa Cruz County Health Services Agency, Mimi Hall.

Mimi Hall, Santa Cruz County’s Health Services Agency (HSA) Director, presented on the 
COVID-19 pandemic’s impact locally and in the greater area.   

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
8-

20
21

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
January 28, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 2/1/2021 2:40 PM 

Council Member Keiser asked if the COVID-19 vaccines cause symptoms in recipients like the 
flu vaccine. Director Hall responded that vaccines sometimes illicit symptoms of infection (an 
immune response) which means the vaccine is working, not that one has been infected.  

In response to a question, Director Hall said that different cultures and populations have different 
relationships with vaccinations and that the HSA is addressing this through outreach and 
education, to ensure the community is served as a whole.   

Council Member Bertrand asked where ICU beds are located locally; Director Hall responded that 
in-patient care is available at Dominican Hospital and Watsonville Community Hospital, and 
additionally Palo Alto Medical Foundation (Sutter Maternity) was recently used as a surge site. 
She emphasized that plenty of hospital beds but with limited health care workers the extra beds 
are of little use. Keeping the health care workforce healthy and intact is a priority. Council 
Member Bertrand confirmed that the vaccine will protect recipients from the severity of the virus’ 
impact, not catching/spreading the virus.  

There was no public comment. 

MOTION: MAKE DETERMINATION AND RECEIVE REPORT 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen, Council Member  

SECONDER: Margaux Keiser, Council Member 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

B. Consider Extending the Partnership with Santa Cruz County Parks for the Capitola
Recreation Out-of-School Time Program
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to amend the current
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Santa Cruz County Parks to collect

revenue and reimburse Capitola for up to $120,000 for Capitola Recreation’s Out-

of-School Time (OST) program, for the remaining school year; and adopt the
proposed resolution approving the recommended budget amendment.

Recreation Supervisor Bryant-LeBlond presented the staff report and Director Malberg explained 
the proposed budget amendment.  

There was no public comment. 

MOTION: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND THE MOU WITH SANTA 
CRUZ COUNTY PARKS AND ADOPT THE PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
AMENDING THE BUDGET  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey, Vice Mayor 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

C. Receive Presentation on Recommended Uses for the Second Round of Community
Development Block Grant - Coronavirus Relief Funding
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept staff presentation on the Community
Development Block Grant Coronavirus Response- Round 2 (CDBG-CV2) notice of
funding availability up to $320,261 of grant funds for COVID-19 related relief
programs, take public input, discuss allocations for round two, and direct staff to

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
8-

20
21

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
January 28, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 2/1/2021 2:40 PM 

return with a resolution in preparation for an application.    

 
Director Herlihy presented the staff report.  
 
Vice-Mayor Storey asked if Lift Line would be a new grant recipient. Director Herlihy replied that 
Lift Line had been a recipient in Round 1 of the CDBG funding, and they remain eligible. The 
Vice-Mayor asked if they could receive funding without disrupting Staff’s recommended 
allocations. Director Herlihy was unsure how Community Bridges would choose to allocate the 
$15,000 between their two programs, Meals on Wheels and Lift Line, but emphasized that 
Community Bridges would receive funding.  
 
Council Member Bertrand asked qualifications for receiving funding and if Round 1 recipients 
were asked how funds were used. Director Herlihy replied that the qualifications are meeting 
HUD’s three requirements. Council Member Bertrand asked if a business’s new operations due to 
COVID-19 were qualified for grant funding. Director Herlihy replied that this will be discussed at 
the next ad-hoc meeting.  
 
Mayor Brooks asked for clarification on the funding timeline. Director Herlihy replied that Round 1 
had covered 12 months, and that spending can be backdated to qualify past expenses. Round 2 
covers the next 24 months. The Mayor asked if additional funding resources were anticipated by 
staff for the same period; Director Herlihy said that funds are now being offered by different 
sources such as the State’s Treasury rather than HUD.  
 
Council Member Bertrand asked if staff is working with the Chamber of Commerce. Director 
Herlihy said that the Chamber is on the Business Recovery Task Force, and that the Small 
Business group at Cabrillo has been involved in the CDBG Funds ad-hoc committee.  
 
In public comment, Lisa Burkawitz (Meals on Wheels) and Kurt Vance (Lift Line) both thanked 
Council for the past CDBG funding and gave brief overviews of what their programs offer those in 
need.  
 
Ray Cancino (Community Bridges) asked that further CDBG funding not be used for business 
development and instead focus solely on programs serving low income and under-served 
community members.  
 
Council Member Petersen thanked members of the public for commenting and explained that the 
ad-hoc committee was designed to analyze and determine where CDBG funds should be 
allocated to best help the community and that much effort was put into these decisions; she 
asked Council not to take away funding from local business development.   
 
Vice-Mayor Storey thanked the public and the members of the ad-hoc committee. He asked staff 
what happens if the full allotment of money cannot be used by the recipient; in that case can the 
remaining money be reallocated? Director Herlihy said yes.  
 
Mayor Brooks asked Staff to look to additional CDBG grant and funding options, other than the 
specific coronavirus relief programs.   

 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
8-

20
21

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
January 28, 2021 

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 2/1/2021 2:40 PM 

MOTION:  ACCEPT STAFF PRESENTATION, SUPPORT STAFF 
RECOMMENDATIONS FOR FUND ALLOCATIONS WITH THE 
EXPECTATION THAT FUNDS WILL BE RE-ALLOCATED IF THEY 
CANNOT BE USED BY ORGANIZATIONS FIRST DESIGNATED AS 
GRANT RECIPIENTS BY THE CITY  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Sam Storey 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

D. Consider a Resolution Accepting a Tobacco Grant 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt a resolution accepting a California Department of 
Justice Tobacco Grant Funding of $21,036 to support education, enforcement, and 
training and authorize amending the Fiscal Year 2020/21 general fund operating 
budget to increase revenues and expenditures by $21,036; consider the formation of 
a Tobacco Grant focus group to assist with local youth education and outreach 
efforts.  

 
Captain Dally presented a brief staff report.  
 
There was no public comment.  
 
Council Member Petersen announced that the American Lung Association now rates Capitola as 
a grade “B” City, an improvement from 2017 when the City received a “C” grade.  

 

MOTION:  ADOPT THE RESOLUTION ACCEPTING GRANT FUNDS; COUNCIL 
MEMBER BERTRAND AND MAYOR BROOKS TO PARTICIPATE IN 
FOCUS GROUP REGARDING YOUTH EDUCATION AND OUTREACH IF 
NEEDED/APPROPRIATE  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kristen Petersen  

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand 

AYES: Bertrand, Petersen, Storey, Brooks, Keiser 

 10. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting was closed at 8:52 pm.  

 

   _____________________ 
    Yvette Brooks, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
8-

20
21

 d
ra

ft
  (

A
p

p
ro

ve
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Planning Commission Action Minutes

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive minutes. 

DISCUSSION: Attached for Council review are the action minutes of the December 3, 2020, 
and January 21, 2021, Planning Commission regular meetings. 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 12-3-20 Action
2. 1-21-2021 Action

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.B

Packet Pg. 14



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 12/8/2020 4:03 PM  

ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2020 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda – none  

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments – none  

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. PLANNING COMMISSION - REGULAR MEETING - AUG 20, 2020 7:00 PM 

MOTION: ADOPT THE MINUTES 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Mick Routh 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Routh 

ABSTAIN: Wilk, Christiansen 

 
 
B. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Sep 3, 2020 7:00 PM 

 

MOTION: ADOPT THE MINUTES 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Chairperson 

SECONDER: Peter Wilk, Commissioner 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

 
C. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Nov 5, 2020 7:00 PM 

 

MOTION: ADOPT THE MINUTES 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Chairperson 

SECONDER: Peter Wilk, Commissioner 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

7.B.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

2-
3-

20
 A

ct
io

n
  (

P
C

 m
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – December 3, 2020 2 
 
 
A. 1515 Prospect Avenue   #20-0379   APN: 034-045-12 

Design Permit for first- and second-story additions to a nonconforming single-family 
residence, a new detached Accessory Dwelling Unit (approved ministerially), and a 
revocable encroachment permit for a wall in the public right-of-way located within the R-
1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.    
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit.   
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption   
Property Owner: Peter Shamshoian   
Representative: Richard L. Emigh, Filed: 09.14.2020 

 
MOTION: Approve the Design Permit, Revocable Encroachment Permit, and Coastal Development 
Permit.  
 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Chairperson 

SECONDER: Mick Routh 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

 

5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A. 2110 41st Avenue   #20-0460   APN: 034-221-16 

Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit Amendment to modify the site layout and 
building design and add two new canopies with vacuum drops at Master Car Wash, a car 
washing facility located within the C-R (Regional Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is outside of the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption  
Property Owner: David Karsan  
Representative: Bill Kempf, Architect, Filed: 11.06.2020 

  
MOTION: Approve the Design and Conditional Use Permit.   

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Peter Wilk, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Mick Routh 

AYES: Newman, Welch, Wilk, Routh, Christiansen 

 
 
B. Capitola Village Bollards   #20-0398   APN: N/A 

Coastal Development Permit for the installation of anchors for 15 removable 
bollards/security barriers at three priority intersections within Capitola Village located within 
the C-V (Central Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: City of Capitola 
Representative: Kailash Mozumder, City of Capitola, Filed: 09.25.2020 
 

MOTION: Approve the Coastal Development Permit.  

7.B.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

2-
3-

20
 A

ct
io

n
  (

P
C

 m
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – December 3, 2020 3 
 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 

MOVER: TJ Welch, Chairperson 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Welch, Routh, Christiansen 

RECUSED: Newman, Wilk 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk  
 
FINALIZED 1/21/2021 

7.B.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

2-
3-

20
 A

ct
io

n
  (

P
C

 m
in

u
te

s)



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 1/25/2021 3:30 PM  

ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Thursday, January 21, 2021 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioners Routh, Westman, Wilk and Chair Newman were remote.  Commissioner 
Christiansen began participating remotely at 7:10PM.     

2. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Swearing in of New Commissioner 
B. Nomination of Chair and Vice Chair 

MOTION:  Appoint Commissioner Mick Routh as Chair of the Planning Commission. 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Susan Westman 
SECONDER: Ed Newman 
AYES: Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, Peter Wilk 
ABSENT: Courtney Christiansen 

 
MOTION:  Appoint Commissioner Wilk as Vice Chair of the Planning Commission. 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Mick Routh 
SECONDER: Susan Westman 
AYES: Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, Peter Wilk 
ABSENT: Courtney Christiansen 

C. Commission Appointments  
1.  Art & Cultural Commission 

MOTION:  Appoint Commissioner Christiansen as Commissioner to the Art & Cultural 
Commission. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Peter Wilk 
SECONDER: Susan Westman 
AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Susan Westman, 

Peter Wilk 

3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

7.B.2

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
1-

20
21

 A
ct

io
n

  (
P

C
 m

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – January 21, 2021 2 
 
A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
B. Public Comments 
C. Commission Comments 
D. Staff Comments 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Dec 3, 2020 7:00 PM 

MOTION:  Approve the minutes. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 to 0] 
MOVER: Ed Newman 
SECONDER: Peter Wilk 
AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Mick Routh, Peter Wilk 
ABSTAINS: Susan Westman 

 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. 114A Stockton Avenue   #20-0461   APN: 035-231-13 

Design Permit for a residential lift for a mixed-use structure located within the C-V (Central 
Village) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Rickey Feldner 
Representative: Frank Phanton, Architect, Filed: 11.09.2020 
  

 MOTION:  Approve the design permit with a location exemption. 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 to 0] 
MOVER: Courtney Christiansen. 
SECONDER: Susan Westman 
AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Mick Routh, Susan Westman 
RECUSED: Ed Newman, Peter Wilk 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. 4630 Capitola Road   #20-0500   APN: 034-031-28 

Appeal of an administrative denial of a tree removal application located within the 
CR (Commercial Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Mark Vincent 
Representative: Mark Vincent, Filed: 12.02.20 

MOTION:  Uphold the appeal; approve the tree removal application with the condition of 
replacing the removed tree with a single tree. 

 

7.B.2

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
1-

20
21

 A
ct

io
n

  (
P

C
 m

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – January 21, 2021 3 
 

 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [2 TO 1] 
MOVER: Courtney Christiansen 
SECONDER: Peter Wilk 
AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Peter Wilk 
NAYS: Susan Westman 
RECUSED: Ed Newman, Mick Routh 

7. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

8. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:53PM to the next regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission on February 4, 2021. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Edna Basa, Clerk to the Commission 

7.B.2

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
1-

20
21

 A
ct

io
n

  (
P

C
 m

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated January 8, January 15, January 22 and 
January 29.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers.

Account: City Main

Date Starting Check # Ending Check #
Payment 

Count
Amount

1/08/2021 97091 97185 105 $      933,970.69

1/15/2021 97186 97225 42 $        72,133.53

1/22/2021 97226 97266 46 $      141,627.88

1/29/2021 97267 97313 48 $        90,009.50

The main account check register dated December 18, 2020, ended with check #97090.

Account: Library

Date
Starting 

Check/EFT #
Ending 

Check/EFT #
Payment 

Count
Amount

1/08/2021 235 240 6 $      353,263.62

1/29/2021 241 243 3 $      536,833.83

The library account check register dated December 18, 2020, ended with check #234.

Account: Payroll

Date
Starting 

Check/EFT #
Ending 

Check/EFT #
Payment 

Count
Amount

1/01/2021 16068 16157 93 $      195,917.68

1/15/2021 16160 16256 97 $      155,617.68

1/29/2021 16257 16349 93 $      165,749.95
The payroll account check register dated December 18, 2020, ended with EFT #16067. 

Following is a list of payments issued for more than $10,000 and descriptions of the expenditures:

Check/
EFT

Issued to Dept Description Amount

97107
Burke Williams & 

Sorensen
CM November legal services $   14,490.45

7.C

Packet Pg. 21



Approval of City Check Registers 
February 11, 2021

97118 Donald W. Alley PW
Flume & Jetty biological 
monitoring, Soquel creek 

monitoring
$  10,415.07

97143 Moffatt and Nichol PW
Wharf permitting, jetty & wharf 

construction support
$   17,513.42

97144 MBASIA CM
Workers’ comp. and liability 

insurance
$ 472,852.50

97164 Santa Cruz Regional 911 PD
Regional 911 operating 
contribution & SCRMS

$ 125,162.75

1057 CalPERS Health FN January health insurance $   55,701.42

1058
CalPERS Member 

Services
FN

PERS contributions PPE 
12/12/20

$   46,258.97

1060 IRS FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

12/12/20
$   23,343.54

1062 VOYA Financial FN
Employee 457 contributions 

PPE 12/12/20
$   10,731.44

1063
CalPERS Member 

Services
FN

PERS contributions PPE 
12/26/20

$   46,971.52

238 John F. Otto Inc. Escrow PW November library retainer $   12,389.13

239 One Workplace L. Ferrari PW Library furniture $ 100,140.85

240 Otto Construction Inc. PW November library construction $ 235,393.40

16159 IRS FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

12/26
$   28,438.08

97189
Anderson Pacific 

Engineering
PW

Park Ave. sidewalk remaining 
contract balance

$   18,999.99

97220 US Bank FN Pac Cove park facility lease $   10,849.06

97247 PG&E PW
Rispin utilities, Pac Cove 

parking utilities, facilities gas & 
electricity

$   14,537.25

1069
CalPERS Member 

Services
FN

PERS contributions PPE 
1/9/21

$   52,372.37

1071 IRS FN
Federal taxes & Medicare PPE 

1/9/21
$   25,024.28

97306 Visit Santa Cruz County FN
October – December tourism 

marketing district
$   47,937.43

242 John F. Otto Inc. Escrow PW December library retainer $   26,697.82

243 Otto Construction Inc. PW December library construction $ 507,258.54

ATTACHMENTS:

1. 1-8-21 Check Register
2. 1-15-21 Check Register
3. 1-22-21 Check Register
4. 1-29-21 Check Register

Report Prepared By:  Mark Sullivan
Senior Accountant

7.C

Packet Pg. 22



Approval of City Check Registers 
February 11, 2021

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.C

Packet Pg. 23



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.1

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-8
-2

1 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.2

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-1
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.2

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-1
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.2

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-1
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.2

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-1
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.2

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-1
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.2

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-1
5-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.3

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
2-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.3

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
2-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.3

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
2-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
2-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
2-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.4

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
9-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.4

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
9-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.4

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
9-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.4

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
9-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
9-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.C.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

-2
9-

21
 C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
r 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Amend the Conflict of Interest Code to Reflect Current Organizational Structure 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve resolution.

BACKGROUND: The California Political Reform Act requires jurisdictions to adopt a Conflict of 
Interest Code to identify positions that involve decision-making or participation in decision-making 
that may affect the personal economic interests of people holding those positions. These positions 
are in addition to those mandated in Government Code 87200. Once designated, the individuals 
occupying those positions are required to make annual disclosures in a Statement of Economic 
Interest (Form 700) regarding sources of income. These may include investments, interest in real 
property, and any business positions held outside of their employment with the City, and are 
identified in order to avoid potential conflicts of interest. 

The California Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) requires local jurisdictions’ conflict of 
interest code be reviewed, and amended if necessary, biannually in even years. Staff proposes 
amendments now, in early 2021, because an amendment review was not done in 2020. Regular 
review/amendments will be taken up in 2022 and continue biannually in even years as required. 
Staff proposed amending the Conflict of Interest Code in 2019, which Council adopted on April 11, 
2019, however this was done in additional to the required schedule. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed resolution: adds the Public Works project manager position (which in 
an oversight has not previously been listed in the Conflict of Interest Code), removes the 
maintenance superintendent and maintenance supervisor positions (positions which are no longer 
included in the City organization chart), and removes the City Manager department administrative 
services director position (a role no longer included in the City organizational chart). 

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

7.D

Packet Pg. 54



Amend Conflict of Interest Code 
February 11, 2021

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.D

Packet Pg. 55



Amend Conflict of Interest Code 
February 11, 2021

RESOLUTION NO. _

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 4145 AND ADOPTING A REVISED

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE FOR THE CITY OF CAPITOLA

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code Section 81000, et seq., 
requires state and local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest 
codes; and

WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation, 2 Cal. 
Code of Regs. Section 18730, which contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest 
code; and

WHEREAS, said standard conflict of interest code can be incorporated by reference 
and may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission after public notice and 
hearings to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act; and

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola adopted a revised Conflict of Interest Code effective on 
April 11, 2019, by Resolution No. 4145; and

WHEREAS, the Conflict of Interest Code is currently being updated to add to the list 
of designated positions in Appendix C and to clarify its application to designated persons.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Capitola resolves as follows:

1. As of February 11, 2021, Resolution No. 4145 is rescinded, and this 
resolution shall become effective.

2. This resolution does not pertain to the following offices because these offices 
are already regulated by and subject to Government Code Section 87200:  
Council Members, Planning Commissioners, City Manager, City Attorney, 
and City Treasurer.

3. The terms of 2 Cal. Code of Regs. Section 18730 and any amendments to it 
duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby 
incorporated by reference and, along with the attached Appendix “A” and “B” in 
which members and employees are designated and disclosure categories are 
set forth, constitute the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Capitola.

4. Upon electronic filing or receipt of the statements of the Council Members, 
Planning Commission Members, City Manager, City Attorney, and City 
Treasurer, the City Clerk shall make and retain a copy and forward the original 
of these statements to the Fair Political Practices Commission.  Designated 
employees shall file statements of economic interests with the City Clerk who 
will make the statements available for public inspection and reproduction 
(Government Code Section 81008).  The City Clerk will retain statements for all 
designated employees.

7.D

Packet Pg. 56



Amend Conflict of Interest Code 
February 11, 2021

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Capitola on the 11th of February, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

__________________________
Yvette Brooks, Mayor

ATTEST:

__________________________
Chloé Woodmansee, City Clerk

7.D

Packet Pg. 57



Amend Conflict of Interest Code 
February 11, 2021

APPENDIX "A"

LIST OF DESIGNATED POSITIONS

TITLE DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

Administrative Services Director C, D

Architectural & Site Review

 Committee Public Members

 (Architect, Landscape Architect, and Historian) A

Art & Cultural Commission Members A

Assistant to the City Manager C, D

Associate Planner C, D

Building Official C, D

Chief of Police A

City Clerk C

Community Development Director C, D

Deputy City Attorney A

Environmental Project Manager C, D

Field Supervisor C

Information Systems Specialist B

Finance Director A

Historical Museum Board Members and Curator C

Maintenance Superintendent C

Maintenance Supervisor C

Police Captain A

Project Manager C, D

Public Works Director C, D

Recreation Supervisor C

Senior Planner C, D

Senior Mechanic C

Successor Agency A

Consultants * A

*Consultants shall be included in the list of designated positions and shall disclose pursuant 
to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following limitation:

The City Manager may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a 
"designated position," is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus 
is not required to fully comply with the disclosure requirements described in this section.  
Such written determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and, based 
upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  The City 
Manager's determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the 

7.D

Packet Pg. 58



Amend Conflict of Interest Code 
February 11, 2021

same manner and location as this conflict of interest code.

7.D

Packet Pg. 59



Amend Conflict of Interest Code 
February 11, 2021

APPENDIX "B"

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

The Disclosure Categories for the City of Capitola are listed below. 

CATEGORY A. All sources of income, interests in real property, and investments and 
business positions in business entities.

CATEGORY B. Investments and positions in business entities, and sources of income, 
including interests in real property, if the source is of the type which 
provide services, supplies, materials, machinery, or equipment of the 
type utilized by the City of Capitola.

CATEGORY C. Investments and positions in business entities, and sources of income, 
if the source is of the type which provide services, supplies, materials, 
machinery or equipment of the type utilized by the designated 
employee's department or division.

CATEGORY D. Investments and positions in business entities, and sources of income, 
including interests in real property, if the source is of the type that is 
subject to the regulatory permit or licensing authority by the department 
in which that person is employed or if the source of income is from land 
development, construction or the acquisition or sale of real property by 
the City of Capitola.

General Provisions

When a designated person is required to disclose investments and sources of income, the 
person need only disclose investments in business entities and sources of income, which are doing 
business in the jurisdiction, plan to do business in the jurisdiction, or have done business in the 
jurisdiction within the past two years.  In addition to other activities, a business entity is doing 
business within the jurisdiction if it owns real property within the jurisdiction.  When a designated 
person is required to disclose interests in real property, the person need only disclose real 
property, which is located in whole or in part within, or not more than two miles outside the 
boundaries of the jurisdiction or within two miles of any land owned or used by the local 
government agency.

Designated persons shall disclose their financial interests pursuant to the appropriate 
disclosure category as indicated in Appendix "A."

7.D

Packet Pg. 60



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Receive Update on Pandemic Response

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make the determination that all hazards related to the worldwide 
spread of the coronavirus (COVID-19) as detailed in Resolution No. 4168 adopted by the City 
Council on March 12, 2020, still exist and that there is a need to continue action.

BACKGROUND: In December 2019, an outbreak of a respiratory illness linked to the novel 
coronavirus (COVID-19) was first identified. In March 2020, the state of California, the County of 
Santa Cruz, and the City of Capitola each declared a state of emergency due to the virus. Also 
in March, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. 

Since March, State and local health officers have issued health orders to stop the spread of 
COVID-19; in Santa Cruz County this included March, April, and May Shelter-In-Place orders 
that were more restrictive that statewide guidance. Since then, the County Health Officer has 
incorporated all Orders of the State Public Health Officer, which set baseline statewide 
restrictions on travel and non-residential business activities. 

Blueprint for a Safer Economy & Local Tier Status

On August 28, 2020, the State Monitoring List was replaced by the Blueprint for a Safer 
Economy. In this new system, every county in California is assigned to a tier based on its rate of 
new COVID-19 cases and positivity. The tiers, from most restrictive to least, are: Purple-
Widespread; Red- Substantial; Orange- Moderate; and Yellow- Minimal. 

At the start of this system on August 31, Santa Cruz County was placed in the Purple-
Widespread tier. Originally, tier assignments were announced weekly, on Tuesdays. Since the 
surge in November, the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) has announced that tier 
assignments may be announced at any time and could occur more than once a week. The table 
below shows where Santa Cruz County has fallen within the tier system since its 
implementation. 

Date Tier Assignment Weeks in Tier

August 31 Widespread Tier Two 

September 8 Substantial Tier Seven 

7.E

Packet Pg. 61



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 19 
February 11, 2021

October 27 Moderate Tier Two 

November 10 Substantial Tier Two 

November 16 Widespread Tier Eleven+ 

As of February 2, there are 54 California Counties are in the Purple-Widespread tier, one 
County is in the Substantial-Red tier, and three are in the Moderate-Orange tier. 

California State Regional Stay-Home Order

On December 3, Governor Newsom announced a new Regional Stay-Home Order, to go in
effect in any region with less than 15% of Intensive Care Unit (ICU) hospital availability. 
California has been divided into five regions for the purposes of the order, with Santa Cruz 
County in the Bay Area Region. The Order mandated restrictions for the entire region, additional 
to those required under any County’s current tier assignment. In the Bay Area Region, the Order 
commenced on Thursday, December 17, at 11:59pm, and was implemented because data 
released by the state showed ICU capacity fell below the threshold of 15% availability. 

On January 25, 2021, Governor Newsome announced that the Regional Stay-Home Order had 
ended for the entire state. The Blueprint for a Safer Economy orders remain in place, and Santa 
Cruz County remains within the Purple Widespread tier. Although the Regional Stay-Home 
Order is no longer in effect, all individuals living within the State of California are currently 
ordered to stay home or at their place of residence, except for permitted work, local shopping or 
other permitted errands, or as otherwise authorized. 

Local Case Numbers and Statistics

As of February 5, 2021, the Bay Area Region’s ICU availability is 18.1%. The Region has a four-
week availability projection of 33.3% as of February 1.  

As of February 5, 2021, there are 13,790 known COVID-19 cases in the County; of the known 
cases 373 are in the City of Capitola. There have been 155 deaths in our County. 

In Santa Cruz County, the rate of new cases per day per 100k is at 31.0, with an adjusted case 
rate for tier assignment of 24.4. There is an overall positivity rate of 5.6%.  

DISCUSSION: Due to the City, County, and State’s emergency declarations, City departments 
continue to implement strategies to protect the community and employees while maintaining 
essential levels of service to the public. 

If major changes occur between the date of agenda publication and the City Council meeting, 
further updates on the regional and local coronavirus response can be provided in a verbal 
report at the meeting. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Fiscal impacts from the pandemic have been accounted for in the updated FY 
20/21 Budget. Those impacts are being reviewed on a quarterly basis by the City Council. In 
addition, the City Council has set aside $600,000 to help ensure the City has available
resources should the pandemic result in further unforeseen impacts. The next scheduled budget 
review will occur in early March.

7.E

Packet Pg. 62



COVID-19 Emergency- Update 19 
February 11, 2021

Report Prepared By:  Chloe Woodmansee
City Clerk

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

7.E

Packet Pg. 63



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Capitola Historical Museum 2020 Annual Report

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report. 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Historical Museum, like many facilities, has been unable to open 
since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Prior to the closure of the museum to the public in 
March 2020, the Museum was able to show a film and open a new exhibition.

In lieu of being open to the public, the Museum Curator, Frank Perry, has focused on getting 
information out via the internet and other means. In addition, Mr. Perry has worked on improving 
the organization and cataloguing of the Museum collection and assets. The Museum Curator 
continues to meet with the Board to develop and plan ways to reach the public.

DISCUSSION: Some of the work undertaken by the Museum in 2020 includes the following:

In January, the Capitola Museum hosted a showing of the 1920 movie, The Testing Block, 
which was partially filmed in Capitola. More than 130 people attended the showing at the 
Capitola Community Center. The film has been added to the Museum’s YouTube channel.

In January and February, a new museum exhibition was created: Capitola Then and Now. 
Volunteer training was held on February and the exhibition opened to the public on March 1.  
The exhibition will remain in place until visitors can attend once again.

The Museum has continued to provide the weekly “Focal Point” feature in the Santa Cruz 
Sentinel, showcasing historic photos of Capitola and other places around the county.

The Museum published three issues of its Capitola Sunset newsletter this year which is sent to 
a mailing list of nearly 300 people.

In honor of the centennial of the Rispin Mansion, a special website was created to document the 
story of the Rispin family, the mansion, and Capitola during the 1920s more thoroughly than 
ever before.

The Museum continues to post messages on Facebook about once a week, showcasing historic 
photographs or publicizing important upcoming events. Curator Frank Perry was interviewed 
about Capitola history on KSQD Radio on November 16, 2020.

Two panels of historic photographs have been temporarily mounted on the front of the Museum 
for viewing while it is closed.  In addition, a new and improved museum sign has been designed 
for the front of the Museum and will hopefully be installed soon.

8.A

Packet Pg. 64



Capitola Historical Museum 2020 Annual Report 
February 11, 2021

FISCAL IMPACT: No anticipated fiscal impact

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Capitola Museum Annual Report 2020

Report Prepared By:  Larry Laurent
Assistant to the City Manager

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.A

Packet Pg. 65



Annual Report for the Year 2020, Capitola Historical Museum

Publishing of 2020 Calendar 
	 The Museum published a 2020 calendar as a fundraiser, 
using historic images from the Museum’s collection.


Showing of The Testing Block 
	 Over 130 people attended the showing of the movie, The 
Testing Block, in January at the Capitola Community Center. It 

was the centennial of the filming of this silent western in Capitola. The film was later 
added to the Museum’s YouTube channel with an introduction telling about its filming in 
Capitola and in the San Lorenzo Valley. https://www.youtube.com/watch?
v=MU78Jz7v8MM&t=3539s. It has had over 500 views.


New Exhibition 
	 In January and February a new 
exhibition was created: Capitola Then and 
Now. Volunteer training was held on Feb. 29 
and the exhibition opened to the public on 
March 1. Unfortunately, the Museum had to 
close later in March due to the pandemic. The 
exhibition will be held over through 2021.

	 

Focal Points 
	 The Museum continued to provide the weekly “Focal Point” feature in the Santa 
Cruz Sentinel, showcasing historic photos of Capitola and other places around the 
county. It reaches over 16,700 readers each week and has been immensely successful 
in calling attention to Capitola and the Museum and in attracting donations of historic 
photographs. 


Capitola Sunset 
	 The Museum published three issues of its Capitola Sunset 
newsletter this year which is sent to a mailing list of nearly 300 
people. Two were theme issues: one with articles by board 
members about Capitola during the pandemic, and one on 
women in Capitola history (in commemoration of the centennial 
of the 19th amendment to the U.S. Constitution). https://
www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/
capitola_museum/page/3773/capitola_sunset_summer_2020-
rev_2-jan_2021-final.pdf.


Collections Curation 
	 The Museum continues to make important improvements to 

the organization and storage of its collections. Recent acquisitions have been 
cataloged and inventories have been made of several of the collections, including the 
Begonia Festival archives. In November, work began on taking an inventory of the 
Museum’s collection of framed art and building better storage cabinets for the art. 

�  of 31

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 M
u

se
u

m
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
02

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 H

is
to

ri
ca

l M
u

se
u

m
 2

02
0 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MU78Jz7v8MM&t=3539s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MU78Jz7v8MM&t=3539s
https://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/capitola_museum/page/3773/capitola_sunset_summer_2020-rev_2-jan_2021-final.pdf
https://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/capitola_museum/page/3773/capitola_sunset_summer_2020-rev_2-jan_2021-final.pdf
https://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/capitola_museum/page/3773/capitola_sunset_summer_2020-rev_2-jan_2021-final.pdf
https://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/capitola_museum/page/3773/capitola_sunset_summer_2020-rev_2-jan_2021-final.pdf


Annual Report for the Year 2020, Capitola Historical Museum

Each art work is being inspected and photographed, with minor cleaning being done 
where appropriate. The inventory will eventually include works of art hanging at City 
Hall and the Capitola Community Center, and outdoor public art.

	 

Transcription of Messini Manuscript and Benbow 
Letters 
	 A transcription has been prepared of the hand-
written Edna Messini manuscript, in which she shares her 
personal stories of Capitola in the 1950s and 1960s. Work 
also began on transcribing the Helen Benbow letters, 
written in Capitola and sent to her family in 1919-1921. 
Benbow was an apprentice and student of George 
McCrea, architect of the Rispin Mansion and other Rispin 
projects in Capitola at that time.


Responding to Public Inquiries 
	 The Museum continues to respond to requests for 
information and offers of historic Capitola photos and artifacts. A recent donation of 
aerial photographs by Trini Contreras document the development of the 41st Avenue 
area from the 1960s through 1990s. The Museum also received original archival 
materials that belonged to Pawla’s Violet Farm, an early day Capitola nursery.


Creation of the Rispin Mansion Centennial Website 
	 Work on the Rispin Mansion began in late 
1919, and it was finished in early 1921. In honor of 
the centennial, a special website has been 
created to document more thoroughly than ever 
before the story of the Rispin family, the mansion, 
and Capitola during the 1920s (the period during 
which Rispin owned the town). The website 
includes a biography of the Rispins, a slide show 

of historic photographs, a timeline, trivia game, and videos and will serve as a 
community resource for many years into the future. The research materials gathered to 
produce the website will be stored permanently at the Museum. Visit https://
rispincapitola.weebly.com.


Facebook 
	 The Museum posts messages on Facebook about once a week, showcasing 
historic photographs or publicizing important upcoming events. Some of the more 
popular posts have reached several thousand people.


Outdoor Displays 
	 Two panels of historic photographs have been temporarily mounted on the front 
of the Museum for viewing while it is closed. One features beach scenes, the other 
trains. Joshua Henshaw, youth representative to the board, helped with this project. 

�  of 32

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 M
u

se
u

m
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
02

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 H

is
to

ri
ca

l M
u

se
u

m
 2

02
0 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)

https://rispincapitola.weebly.com
https://rispincapitola.weebly.com


Annual Report for the Year 2020, Capitola Historical Museum

Our walking tour brochure of Capitola is available on the Museum website and paper 
copies are available at a box in front of the Museum.


On the Radio 
	 Curator Frank Perry was interviewed about Capitola history on KSQD Radio 
November 16. For those who missed it, this program is archived on KSQD’s “Exploring 
Santa Cruz,” https://ksqd.org/exploring-soquel-and-capitola/.


Museum Sign 
	 A new and improved museum sign has been designed for the front of the 
Museum. It will be installed later this year when approved by the city. 


Capitola Historical Museum Board of Trustees 
Niels Kisling, President

David Peyton, Vice President

Pamela Greeninger, Secretary

Brian Legakis, Treasurer

Emmy Mitchell-Lynn

Dean Walker

Gordon van Zuiden

Joshua Henshaw, Youth Representative


Curator 
Frank Perry

�  of 33

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 M
u

se
u

m
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 2
02

0 
 (

C
ap

it
o

la
 H

is
to

ri
ca

l M
u

se
u

m
 2

02
0 

A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
)

https://ksqd.org/exploring-soquel-and-capitola/


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Local Early Action Planning Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
Contract

RECOMMENDATION: That the City Council:
1. Receive an update on the City’s Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) Grant Projects.
2. Authorize the City Manager to enter an agreement with Economic and Planning 

Systems, Inc in the amount of $40,890 for the LEAP grant project to prepare a 
residential nexus study and a housing fee feasibility analysis.

3. Approve a resolution to amend the City budget to include the $65,000 grant award.

BACKGROUND: In the 2019-20 Budget Act, Governor Gavin Newsom allocated $250 million for 
all regions, cities, and counties to prioritize planning activities that accelerate housing production 
to meet identified needs of every community. With this allocation, the State of California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) established the Local Early Action 
Planning Grant Program (LEAP) with $119 million for cities and counties. Small size jurisdictions 
such as Capitola can apply for and receive up to $65,000 in LEAP grant funding.

The Local Early Action Planning Grants (LEAP) may be utilized by local governments for the 
preparation and adoption of planning documents and process improvements that accelerate 
housing production or facilitate compliance that implements the sixth-cycle Regional Housing 
Needs Assessment (RHNA). Eligible activities must be related to housing planning and facilitate 
the streamlining and acceleration of housing production.

On May 14, 2020, the City Council authorized staff to apply for the LEAP grant to facilitate the 
rewrite of the Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 18.02: Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing. 

On December 2, 2020, the City of Capitola was awarded the LEAP grant for $65,000. The 
budget for the $65,000 LEAP grant included $35,000 to complete an affordable housing nexus 
study and $30,000 to update the City’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance (IHO).  

DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola’s IHO, codified under Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 
18.02: Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing, was originally adopted in 2004. The City’s IHO was 
last updated in 2013. Since that time, numerous relevant changes in state law and the housing 
market have taken place, making it an opportune time to update the ordinance. 

8.B

Packet Pg. 69



LEAP Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study Contract 
February 11, 2021

Under the AB1600 “Mitigation Fee Act” of 1987 (Government Code Sections 66000-66025),
cities may charge impact fees to new development that offset the impacts new development 
causes on public services. To comply with the Mitigation Fee Act and the Takings Clause of the 
U.S. Constitution, there must be an “essential nexus” between the development and the impacts 
that the fee seeks to mitigate, and a development fee must be “roughly proportional” to the 
development’s impact.

Before adopting an impact fee on development, the City must complete a nexus study to 
determine what impact development has on the City’s affordable housing stock. The impact fee 
is then based on that study. After preparing and adopting the study, and imposing the fee, the 
City must prepare an annual report providing specific information about those fees; the nexus 
study must be updated periodically.

On August 26, 2020, the City Council received an update on the City’s IHO and provided 
direction on six policy items related to updating the IHO. The City Council directed staff to 
initiate an affordable housing nexus study in preparation for the updated IHO. On October 8, 
2020, staff brought the first draft of the IHO ordinance to the City Council. The item was pulled 
from the agenda with direction to hear the item at a future meeting. Staff plans to proceed with 
the IHO update upon completion of the nexus study.  

On November 17, 2020, the City published a request for proposals (RFP) for an affordable 
housing nexus study. The RFP was published for 30 days and the City received three proposals 
from qualified applicants. A committee comprised of local affordable housing program 
administrators reviewed the three submittals and identified Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 
(EPS) as the top applicant.  

EPS, Inc is a planning economics consulting firm with expertise in affordable housing policies 
and programs. Their proposal (Attachment 1) included completion of a housing nexus study 
($33,300), an option for a housing fee feasibility analysis ($6,090), and an optional additional 
public hearing ($1,500). The housing feasibility analysis reviews the “maximum supportable 
fees” from the nexus study and further analyzes to ensure the fees can be supported by the 
local development community. Fees that are overburdensome are counterproductive as they 
obstruct efforts toward the City’s goals for housing production. Staff recommends the City 
Council approve a contract is for $40,890 to complete the housing nexus study and housing fee 
feasibility analysis.

FISCAL IMPACT:  The update of the City’s IHO and Nexus study will be a collaboration 
between the City Attorney, City Staff, contractor Carolyn Flynn, and EPS, Inc.  

Deliverable Budget
Burke, Williams, & Sorensen Draft IHO Update $12,500
Carolyn Flynn Review IHO Update $2,102
Staff Draft IHO Update $9,508
EPS, Inc. Nexus Study &

Fee Feasibility Study
$40,890

Total Budget $65,000

The proposed IHO update, nexus study, and fee feasibility analysis will be covered by the 
$65,000 LEAP grant. A resolution and budget amendment are Attachments 2 and 3. 

8.B

Packet Pg. 70



LEAP Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study Contract 
February 11, 2021

ATTACHMENTS:

1. EPS Affordable Housing Nexus Study Proposal
2. LEAP Grant Budget Amendment Reso
3. LEAP Grant Budget Amendment

Report Prepared By:  Katie Herlihy
Community Development Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.B

Packet Pg. 71



 

1. COVER LETTER 

December 15, 2020 

Katie Herlihy 
Community Development Director 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA  95010 

Subject: Proposal to Complete Affordable Housing Nexus Study; EPS #201117 

Dear Ms. Herlihy: 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) appreciates the opportunity to submit 
this response to the Request for Proposals (RFP) to prepare an affordable housing 
nexus study for the City of Capitola. EPS understands that the City is seeking this 
study to complement a broader upcoming update to its Inclusionary Housing 
Ordinance. 

Founded in 1983, EPS is a land use economics consulting firm with offices in 
Oakland, Los Angeles, Sacramento, and Denver. EPS’s practice is at the forefront 
of evolving affordable housing policy. We have developed a robust technical and 
analytical framework for evaluating the demands for affordable housing, and our 
broader practice in housing and residential real estate development allows us to 
ensure that inclusionary housing policies are effectively integrated with other 
financing mechanisms and resources. EPS also applies understanding of real estate 
economics and land use planning to ensure housing policies and related zoning 
requirements effectively balance the requirement for meeting the area’s housing 
needs with the feasibility of new development. 

During the past several years EPS has prepared nexus-based fee studies related to 
affordable housing for many California jurisdictions, including Walnut Creek, 
Petaluma, Pleasanton, Sunnyvale, Santa Rosa, Mountain View, San Mateo, and 
Palm Desert, as well as Sonoma and Mono Counties.  In addition, we have 
provided inclusionary housing and in-lieu fee studies for many California 
jurisdictions and others outside of California, including a number of resort 
communities and others where second homes represent a significant portion of 
new housing development.  EPS is therefore well positioned to provide Capitola 
with the technical analysis and knowledge of best practices needed to complete a 
Nexus Study. 

Our proposal contains EPS’s approach, methodology, work plan, and proposed 
budget, as well as more information on the firm’s experience and staff expertise. 
As a Managing Principal of EPS, I am authorized to contractually obligate the 
organization and negotiate on behalf of the organization. Any questions may be 
addressed to Darin Smith at (510) 841-9190 or dsmith@epsys.com or at the 
address noted in the margin. 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)

mailto:dsmith@epsys.com


Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 2 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

The EPS Team is enthusiastic about working for the City of Capitola and happy to address any additional 
questions you may have, and any modifications to the scope of work and budget that better suit your 
needs. We look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 

ECONOMIC & PLANNING SYSTEMS, INC. 

Darin Smith 
Managing Principal 

2. CONSULTANT BIOGRAPHY 

A b o u t  E P S  

EPS is a land economics consulting firm experienced in the full spectrum of services related to real estate 
development, economic and market analysis, public/private partnerships, and the financing of government 
services and public infrastructure. Since 1983, EPS has provided consulting services to hundreds of public 
and private sector clients in California and throughout the United States. Clients include cities, counties, 
special districts, multi-jurisdictional authorities, property owners, developers, financial institutions, and 
land use attorneys. EPS applies a multi-disciplinary approach to our work, engaging policy issues against 
the backdrop of fiscal, economic, land use, and public finance opportunities and constraints. Our areas of 
expertise include the following: 

• Affordable Housing Policies and Programs 
• Public Finance and Development Impact Fees 
• Fiscal Impact Analysis 
• Economic Impact Analysis 
• Development Negotiations Support 
• Land Use Planning and Growth Management 
• Real Estate Market and Feasibility Analysis 
• Regional Economics and Industry Analysis 

E P S  H o u s in g  Ph i l o s o ph y  

Affordable housing should be viewed as an integral part of the urban fabric, conferring far-reaching 
economic and social benefits that provide the underpinnings for sustainable growth and stable 
communities. 

In recent years, many communities throughout California have seen increased housing demand push 
average rents and home prices beyond the level that median-income households can afford. Eventually, 
rising housing costs may force many households to move away from their traditional homes and places of 
employment. The lack of access to affordable housing affects all sectors of society and is a problem for a 
wide range of workers including those in service sector jobs and government employees. 

A lack of affordable housing can affect all aspects of our economic and social lives. When large sectors of 
the workforce leave an area in search of more affordable housing, a combination of outcomes can occur: a 
palpable shortage of labor and/or increased traffic and pollution problems as workers commute long 
distances to their jobs. As quality-of-life measures decline, new industries may be deterred from moving 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 3 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

to the area and existing businesses may decide to relocate, recognizing that they are not able to attract 
the labor they need. 

The availability of a range of housing options affordable to a range of income levels is essential to 
sustaining our communities and must be addressed at both the regional and local levels. Without 
strategies to maintain housing options and affordability, the economic opportunities and quality-of-life 
aspects that originally led to high housing demand and high property values may be lost. 

EPS provides a variety of services related to the formulation of affordable housing policies and programs. 
These include inclusionary housing ordinances and in-lieu fees, nexus studies to support affordable 
housing impact fees on residential and nonresidential development, feasibility analyses and program 
design for specific development projects’ incorporation of affordable units, drafting of Housing Elements, 
and comprehensive housing strategies and policies leveraging a wide variety of funding and regulatory 
mechanisms. We understand that affordable housing requirements on new development represent a 
constraint as well as an opportunity, and seek to craft viable balanced solutions that represent equitable 
and sustainable solutions to communities’ affordable housing needs. 

3. QUALIFICATIONS 

R e le v an t  P r o j e c t s  

As an integral part of its practice, EPS provides a range of services related to housing development and 
policy. EPS’s clients for housing analyses include both public- and private-sector organizations, reflective 
of EPS’s commitment to objective economic analysis of policies and projects. Among its areas of expertise 
in housing policy, EPS works with jurisdictions to develop and retool their inclusionary housing programs 
to meet changing markets and performs the calculations and analysis to establish in-lieu fees. The 
following project profiles detail recently completed consulting assignments with a similar scope and 
context to the proposed work plan. 

Walnut Creek Affordable Housing Impact Fees 
Walnut Creek, California 

The City of Walnut Creek had an inclusionary housing policy and commercial linkage fee program that had 
not been updated for an extended period. EPS was retained to conduct new analysis to determine updated 
fee levels that reflected contemporary economic conditions. Beyond a mere mathematical update, the 
City’s leadership was particularly interested in understanding how changes to their housing-related fees 
would affect development feasibility, as well as yield financial resources to advance their affordable 
housing goals. Through extensive stakeholder outreach and public meetings, EPS explored these issues 
including an analysis of the City’s overall development fee burdens (inclusive of fees for transportation, 
open space, etc.), a comparison among other jurisdictions, and an assessment of the effect of fees on 
project feasibility. EPS also provided a literature review regarding the impact of inclusionary housing 
programs on overall housing production and affordability, as well as case studies of alternatives to 
development fees that could be pursued to fund affordable housing, such as local housing bonds, that 
could distribute the financial impact rather than relying on new construction to generate housing funds. 
The City adopted fees based on EPS’s analysis in 2017.  We encourage Capitola to review our for-sale 
housing fee nexus study for Walnut Creek as an example of our approach, though we would tailor our 
methods and assumptions for Capitola’s unique circumstances. 

Mountain View Inclusionary Housing Ordinance Update and Fee Study 
Mountain View, California 

The City of Mountain View has faced extreme housing pressures as a major employment center in Silicon 
Valley.  EPS was retained by the City to assist with updating the inclusionary housing ordinance to better 
reflect contemporary development economics as well as evolving policy considerations.  In Mountain 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)

https://www.walnut-creek.org/home/showpublisheddocument?id=9703
https://www.walnut-creek.org/home/showpublisheddocument?id=9703


Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 4 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

View’s case, the City was interested in encouraging a diversity of housing pricing within their inclusionary 
units, rather than a single income level (for example, all affordable units at 50 percent of AMI).  EPS 
worked with City staff to understand the economic conditions they hoped to address with the updated 
policy, and calculated a variety of ways to amend the policy accordingly.  The calculations involved 
different affordability requirements as they might be applied to different types of housing developments 
(product types, densities, and tenures) to understand the feasibility implications of the variations.  EPS 
also conducted individual and group discussions with housing developers and other industry 
representatives to ensure that the City’s objectives were understood, the underlying cost and revenue 
assumptions were properly vetted, and staff’s recommendations were previewed before going to Council.  
Mountain View adopted the inclusionary ordinance update and related in-lieu fees in 2019.  Subsequent to 
that effort, the City has retained EPS to assist in understanding the impacts of SB 330 and how variations 
in the City’s zoning and rent stabilization ordinances may affect future development opportunities.  

San Mateo Inclusionary Housing Ordinance Update and Fee Study 
San Mateo, California 

For more than 15 years, EPS has conducted numerous studies for the City of San Mateo regarding 
affordable housing, including a broad strategy for increasing housing production, negotiation support for 
development projects, and most recently an update to the City’s inclusionary housing ordinance.  The City 
had long allowed developers to choose whether to provide 15 percent of units at one income level, or 
10 percent of units at a lower income level.  For-sale projects were allowed to provide affordable units at 
higher price points than rental projects.  The City was interested in updating their policies and practices to 
better address their growing need for affordable housing.  EPS’s calculations involved different 
affordability requirements as they might be applied to different types of housing developments (product 
types, densities, and tenures) to understand the feasibility implications of the variations.  One interesting 
aspect of this work was the incorporation of analysis regarding the impact of the State’s density bonus 
mandates on development feasibility.  EPS also conducted individual and group discussions with housing 
developers and other industry representatives to ensure that the City’s objectives were understood, the 
underlying cost and revenue assumptions were properly vetted, and staff’s recommendations were 
previewed before going to Council.  These communications also sought developer input regarding the 
types and scale of various City incentives that might offset any increased inclusionary housing burden.  
San Mateo adopted the inclusionary ordinance update and related in-lieu fees in 2020.   

Other Relevant Projects 

In addition to the specific studies provided above, EPS has an extensive capacity to address other issues 
in housing policy, as outlined below. All of the projects cited below were led by Darin Smith, EPS’s 
Principal-in-Charge for this Capitola assignment. 

Affordable Housing Residential Nexus Studies 
Mountain View, San Mateo, Sunnyvale, Pleasanton, Palm Desert, Walnut Creek, Santa Rosa, Petaluma, 
Rohnert Park, and Sonoma County, California 

Many California jurisdictions have adopted inclusionary housing policies and ordinances requiring 
developers or new housing projects to provide a certain proportion of new units as “affordable” to 
households at targeted income levels, or else pay a fee in-lieu of providing such units. Before AB 1505, 
several legal challenges affected the implementation of these long-standing programs, and different 
communities had different responses to these challenges. One common response was to conduct nexus 
studies to establish the relationship between the addition of households in new market-rate housing and 
growth in demand for affordable housing. 

EPS has been retained by several jurisdictions to assist with these analyses by providing technical analysis 
that demonstrates the relationship between household spending and job creation, and the affordable 
housing needs associated with those new jobs. After establishing this relationship based on local economic 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 5 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

factors, EPS has calculated an impact fee that can be used to subsidize the construction of new units for 
lower-income worker households. In addition, EPS typically conducts analysis demonstrating the feasibility 
impacts of the potential fees on new housing development, so that jurisdictions can select a fee level that 
will enhance rather than thwart their larger housing objectives. This analysis has been conducted for both 
for-sale and rental housing. 

The levels of effort for these assignments has ranged from simply providing the technical nexus analysis 
to conducting surveys of comparable jurisdictions’ programs and extensive feasibility testing of alternative 
fee levels to assistance or leadership in drafting ordinance language and implementation guidelines, 
depending on the preferences (and budget constraints) of the various clients served. In each case, public 
outreach was conducted during the analysis as well as during the policy discussion that followed. EPS has 
engaged with local housing developers and housing advocates in the course of these analyses, and in 
most cases has presented our findings to boards and elected officials. We have also engaged in 
discussions with building industry advocacy groups (and their consultants) and attorneys representing the 
Cities. In several cases, building industry stakeholders have commissioned peer reviews of EPS’s technical 
work by land use economists, and EPS has publicly addressed the findings thereof to the satisfaction of 
our clients and elected officials. 

Inclusionary Housing Ordinances and Fee Studies 
Mountain View, San Mateo, Healdsburg, Laguna Beach, San Bruno, Newport Beach, Larkspur, Santa Rosa, 
Gilroy, Rohnert Park, Petaluma, Sonoma and Mono Counties, and other California jurisdictions 

EPS has conducted numerous studies regarding inclusionary housing requirements and fees throughout 
California and in other states. In some cases, these studies have been limited to the calculation of a fee in 
lieu of a developer’s obligation to provide affordable units under a pre-existing inclusionary ordinance. In 
other cases, EPS has helped to create or refine the actual inclusionary ordinances themselves, establishing 
levels of affordable housing requirements that appropriately reflect local housing needs as well as 
feasibility constraints, and identifying acceptable alternative means of compliance with the requirements 
and processes for evaluation and implementation. In most instances, this work has involved outreach with 
development industry stakeholders to work through financial feasibility issues as well as procedural 
recommendations. 

4. PROJECT REFERENCES 

1. Wayne Chen, Assistant Community Development Director, City of Mountain View 
(650) 903-6462; Wayne.chen@mountainview.gov 

2. Sandy Council, Housing Manager, City of San Mateo 
(650) 522-7223; scouncil@cityofsanmateo.org 

3. Margot Ernst, Housing Program Manager, City of Walnut Creek 
(925) 943-5899 x2208; Ernst@walnut-creek.org 

PROJECT TEAM 

EPS has assembled a team of highly qualified individuals with the experience necessary to successfully 
complete this project in concert with the ongoing efforts of the City and other stakeholders. As a relatively 
small firm (about 50 employees in four offices), EPS’s policy is to bring the most relevant in-house talent 
to each assignment, and to manage our workload so that our clients are provided the highest level of 
service. While we generally leverage the expertise of our entire staff, each project is assigned a Principal-
in-Charge and Project Manager. 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)

mailto:Wayne.chen@mountainview.gov
mailto:scouncil@cityofsanmateo.org
mailto:Ernst@walnut-creek.org


Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 6 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

A brief description of the role and background of the key EPS staff assigned to this effort is provided 
below. A detailed resume for each staff person below is provided in Appendix A. 

Darin Smith, Managing Principal, will serve as Principal-in-Charge. He will lead all phases of the work 
program, including helping to direct the analytical framework, providing guidance on technical work, and 
interacting with City staff and policymakers. Darin is a recognized expert in housing policy, particularly 
with regards to developing a demand-based nexus methodology for affordable housing impact fee 
programs and working with jurisdictions to develop fee programs that are economically viable and 
promote affordable housing program goals. Over the last 20 years, Darin has worked on affordable 
housing programs and related fees for the diverse cities of Laguna Beach, Newport Beach, Burbank, 
Goleta, Sunnyvale, Mountain View, Pleasanton, San Mateo, Santa Rosa, Walnut Creek, Palm Desert, 
Watsonville, San Bruno, Gilroy, Larkspur, Rohnert Park, Petaluma, and in Sonoma and Mono Counties in 
California, as well as Austin, Texas.  Darin has also led EPS’s recent work on commercial linkage fees for 
many California jurisdictions. Through these and other projects, Darin has extensive experience 
communicating the complex economic realities and financial feasibility challenges of affordable housing 
development with stakeholder groups and to elected bodies. Darin spoke at the California APA Conference 
in 2015 on the topic of local approaches to enhancing funding for and production of affordable housing, 
including specific focus on nexus-based impact fees.  

Kate Traynor, Senior Associate, will serve as the EPS Project Manager and key project contact for the 
City. Kate will provide the primary research and analytical tasks necessary to complete the work program, 
as well as provide day-to-day organizational support to ensure the tasks are completed with high quality 
and in a timely manner. Kate has worked with municipalities throughout California, providing real estate 
market analysis, development feasibility and fiscal impact modeling for a variety of land use plans and 
initiatives. She has also conducted market analyses for affordable housing developers applying for public 
financing, including Low-Income Housing Tax Credits. As such, she has a broad understanding of the 
housing development process from the public and private side, and of the policy approaches that can 
promote needed and desired housing development and related benefits in a community. Kate also has 
experience in working directly with municipal staff, elected officials, and community members, presenting 
on and facilitating discussions of community goals and objectives, local and regional market conditions, 
and policies that can bring the two into alignment. 

EPS ensures it has the staff availability to complete the proposed work plan. Detailed hours by task scoped 
for each staff member are provided in Section 5: Price.  

TECHNICAL APPROACH 

P r o j e c t  U n de r s t an d in g  

Capitola’s Inclusionary Housing Ordinance (IHO), originally drafted in 2004, was last updated in 2013. 
Since that time there have been many changes to state law and the City’s housing market has evolved. 
Capitola’s location in a region dominated by lower growth industries, but adjacent to the jobs-rich San 
Francisco Bay Area, means many residents commute out of Capitola for work and the housing supply 
experiences pressure in the form of demand for vacation homes. According to the most recent Census 
data, the number of homes in Capitola that were used as vacation homes increased by roughly 40 percent 
between 2010 and 2019. 

Increasingly, the Monterey Bay region’s hospitality industry and retirement communities are supported by 
service workers who are forced to live far from their employers. Capitola’s lower income population has 
declined in recent years: the current Housing Element reports 43 percent of households are below 
moderate income, down from over 50 percent in the previous Housing Element. This likely reflects the 
continued in-migration of retirees and high earning households to the City and the related displacement of 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 7 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

low earning households.  According to Zillow, the median home value in Capitola is now nearly $900,000, 
nearly double the value from 2012, and an indication of the changing income profile of new residents and 
challenges of longer-term residents to afford local housing costs. 

The only income category in which Capitola has met its existing RHNA numbers is the above moderate 
category, without making much progress towards achieving its lower income targets. Because Capitola is 
mostly built out, with few vacant lots and minimal space for large projects, it is particularly challenging for 
the City to fulfill its RHNA obligations. In recent memory, new development has trended low density, for 
sale, and market rate with the vast majority of all approved permits being for single family home 
construction or additions to single family homes.  

As a result of the Palmer case, some jurisdictions elected to bolster their affordable housing fees with 
nexus studies showing the relationship between the construction of new market-rate housing and the need 
for more affordable housing required by workers providing goods and services to the increasing 
population.  Early in the post-Palmer era, EPS developed a robust and transparent methodology for 
establishing this nexus, using open-source data rather than third-party proprietary models to demonstrate 
how new residents create new jobs at various income levels.  An example of our approach can be found in 
our study for Walnut Creek that resulted in Council-adopted amendments to that City’s nexus-based 
affordable housing fee on residential development. 

Establishing nexus requires scrutiny of the local housing supply and of recent development trends. The 
number of residents per household and household incomes, for example, are key drivers in determining 
the demand for public services created by new development and, accordingly, the size of a supportable 
nexus-based fee. Capitola’s substantial secondary home inventory may complicate the nexus calculation: 
the demand for services by a homeowner who primarily lives elsewhere is more difficult to generalize.  

EPS will work with the City to consider how the fee program may be customized to reflect Capitola’s 
unique housing market and to achieve increased affordable housing production. These steps and 
perspectives are essential to maintaining a successful affordable housing fee program that:   

• Meets legal requirements. 
• Fulfills City affordable housing and economic development policy goals. 
• Is economically viable and politically feasible. 
• Promotes creativity in the marketplace. 
• Is administratively easy to implement. 

S c o pe  o f  W o r k  

EPS has developed the following technical and analytical framework to respond to the City’s RFP. Given 
the iterative nature of this planning process, and the variety of technical issues that may arise, various 
elements of this Scope of Work may need to be updated as the process unfolds.   

Task 1: Project Initiation and Document Review 

Before beginning the analysis, EPS will participate in a “virtual” project initiation kick-off meeting with City 
staff to discuss the overall context of the Project and the City’s specific objectives. The primary goal of this 
meeting is to finalize the scope, including an approach to engaging targeted stakeholders, project 
schedule, and other project related issues. Of particular interest will be an exploration of the City’s 
preferred approach to the fees that may apply to residential development, including whether these must 
be nexus-based or translations of the City’s inclusionary requirements. EPS has ample experience with 
both approaches, each of which implies a different legal standing and technical underpinnings.  

EPS also will use this opportunity to identify and request existing data, documents, and other pertinent 
information that the City can provide. EPS will also review the City’s current inclusionary ordinance and 
relevant sections of the Housing Element and other City guidelines before the meeting, in order to 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)

https://www.walnut-creek.org/home/showpublisheddocument?id=9703


Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 8 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

facilitate a discussion with City staff about the City’s goals for affordable housing development. The City 
program’s consistency with evolving State law will also be discussed, including AB 1505, density bonus 
law, and other factors. In order to make sure that the City’s affordable housing policies and programs are 
working together as a coherent program, it is recommended that the project team engage the City 
Attorney or other legal advisors at this time to gain their input and assure their comfort with Study 
approach.   

Another goal during these initial conversations will be to identify the appropriate stakeholders with whom 
to engage in order to both identify potential issues of concern with regard to affordable housing policy, as 
well as to validate various assumptions necessary for the analyses in Task 2. Such stakeholders might 
include residential developers that are active in Capitola, housing advocate groups, and members of the 
general public interested in housing policy. Once the City staff have identified a list of such stakeholders, 
the City and EPS will coordinate one or more virtual stakeholder meetings.  

The items listed above may require a follow-up conference call to reach consensus on the preferred 
approach. EPS will continue to engage stakeholders throughout the process of adoption of the fees by the 
Capitola City Council. EPS will also be available to support the presentation of the nexus studies and 
related analysis to the City Council. Our proposed budget assumes one such meeting will be required and 
one additional meeting will be an option available to the City. Finally, this meeting will be used to establish 
a management and reporting protocol for the entire project. 

Task 2: Prepare Residential Nexus Studies 

In Task 1, EPS and the City will be agreeing upon the preferred approach for calculating affordable 
housing fees that may apply to residential development. This discussion may result in one or both of the 
approaches described below; our proposed budget can accommodate either approach, but if both are 
requested, a budget amendment may be required.   

Option 2a: Affordable Housing Demand from Full-Time Residents 

In this approach, EPS will calculate the impact that new residential development would have if the 
residents live in Capitola full-time.  If this approach is preferred by the City, EPS will presume that new 
homes or additions will represent housing for full-time residents who thus utilize a full range of businesses 
in Capitola.  The City may prefer this approach in light of the fact that even if a new unit is originally 
intended as a second home, nothing precludes it from being occupied full-time and it may be prudent for 
the nexus-based fee to anticipate this possibility.  

Option 2b: Affordable Housing Demand from Part-Time Residents 

In light of trends indicating that Capitola’s housing stock is increasingly used as second homes, EPS can 
calculate the impact that new residential construction may have on other industries if the homes are 
occupied for only a portion of the year.  The occupants of such homes are likely to patronize certain 
businesses, such as restaurants or gardening services, at a higher proportion than do full-time residents, 
while patronizing other types of businesses to lesser degrees.  In this approach, EPS will aim to estimate 
the impact that part-time residents may have, but the City may have reasonable concern that an 
assumption of part-time occupancy may understate the impact if the homeowners or potentially their 
guests occupy the homes for more time than the nexus analysis assumes. 

Whether Option 2a or 2b (or a combination thereof) is preferred by the City, EPS will provide analysis of 
the nexus between development of both market-rate ownership and rental housing and the demand for 
affordable housing units.  For each tenure type, the process involves three general steps, as described 
below. 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 9 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

Step 1: Compute Demand for Affordable Housing Generated by Market Rate Units 

The first step is to estimate the impact that the addition of market-rate housing has on job creation and 
household formation.  Using data regarding consumer expenditure patterns and wage levels for specific 
types of business, EPS will estimate the demand for local goods and services generated by the addition of 
market-rate housing and its occupants, convert that demand to a number for local jobs and worker 
households, and estimate the number of those worker households who cannot afford to pay market-rate 
housing prices.  These figures are driven by the incomes of the households occupying the market-rate 
housing—the higher the cost of the housing, the higher the occupants’ income, and the more spending 
and job creation is expected. For Capitola, EPS will pay particular attention to the impact that housing 
additions (expansions of existing homes) can have on the home’s value and thus the income and spending 
patterns of households likely to occupy the home in the near- and long-term.  For example, does adding 
500 square feet typically increase home values by $250,000?  How does the income and spending 
patterns of the household that can afford the larger home differ from the spending attributable to 
households who could afford the formerly smaller home?  EPS will calculate impacts for a range of unit 
types, sizes, and/or price levels to illustrate these effects. 

Step 2: Affordability Gap Analysis 

The second step is to determine whether and how much subsidy is required to provide new housing units 
for worker households of various income levels (e.g., moderate, low, and very low).  Determination of a 
required subsidy amount involves the identification of appropriate housing types for lower-income workers 
(rental vs. for-sale, single-family vs. multifamily, etc.), an estimation of the costs of development 
(construction, land, fees, required financial returns, etc.), as well as an estimation of the unit values based 
on the prices at which the units are affordable to income-qualified households.   

EPS will provide detailed initial assumptions and calculations to City staff for review and comment and 
make adjustments as appropriate.  If further vetting or corroboration is desired, EPS will work with the 
City to identify appropriate participants (for-profit and nonprofit developers, etc.) with whom EPS will 
conduct conversations to review the development cost and value assumptions and calculations.  Following 
these initial discussions and further consultation with City staff, EPS will make adjustments to the 
assumptions and calculations as may be appropriate.  Based on calculations in this step, if the 
development costs are higher than the unit values under allowable rents, a subsidy or financing gap is 
identified and quantified. 

Step 3: Compute Impact Fee per Market Rate Unit 

The third step is to calculate the aggregate subsidy required to produce housing affordable and 
appropriate for those new worker households and allocate that aggregate subsidy back to the market-rate 
project driving that demand.  EPS will calculate a technically derived amount for the maximum justifiable 
impact fee, consistent with this nexus logic.  The results will include different nexus-based fees for 
housing units or additions at various sizes or price levels because the household spending and job creation 
associated with such households will vary by their income, as represented by price levels.  EPS will also 
illustrate the equivalent number of units required at different income levels, which may be used as a 
standard for allowing developers to address their impacts through provision of units on site rather than 
payment of the impact fee.  It is likely that the nexus-based impacts and resulting impact fees or unit 
requirements will be different than the City’s current or past inclusionary requirements.   

OPTIONAL Task 3: Housing Fee Feasibility Analysis 

The preceding tasks will produce “maximum supportable fees,” meaning the highest amount that the City 
could potentially charge different types of development to satisfy their affordable housing requirements 
and/or mitigate their full impact on demands for affordable housing.  In many instances, it is impractical 
to charge the maximum amount because the fees would create too great a financial burden on desired 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 10 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

new development, thus thwarting the City’s other policy goals (economic development, housing 
production, etc.).   

In this optional task, EPS will compare the maximum fees to the costs and values of new development of 
various types, to determine whether the maximum fees represent such a burden and to estimate a figure 
at which the fees may be more feasibly incorporated into a developer’s pro forma.  EPS will create 
prototypical pro formas for residential and nonresidential development representing the various uses to 
which the fees may be applied.  These pro formas will include the general costs of construction and other 
development activities, as well as the prevailing sale prices or lease rates achieved for such development.  
EPS will assess the extent to which the maximum fee reduces the profit margins or residual land values of 
projects, comparing these results to those under past affordable housing policies.  In addition to relying on 
published development cost and lease rate information, EPS will conduct additional informal outreach to 
stakeholders during this task.  

Feasibility testing may not be worth pursuing depending on the nature of new construction in Capitola: 
highly customized, luxury home construction is not easily prototyped as costs are difficult to standardize 
and owners, therefore builders, of luxury homes are less likely to be price sensitive. If desired by the City, 
the deliverable for this task will be a technical memorandum detailing the results of the feasibility analysis 
and implications for the implementation of impact fees. 

Task 4: Fee Level Recommendation Report  

For various reasons, the City may consider setting the fees below their maximum levels as indicated by 
the nexus study.  For example, the City may wish to rely on other sources of revenue to fund affordable 
housing and may choose not to impose the entire burden on developers of market-rate housing.  In 
addition, the maximum fees may be significantly higher than those imposed in comparable jurisdictions, 
creating a concern about the City’s competitive position to attract new development.  EPS will assist the 
City to identify and assess the applicability of such mitigating factors, to assess the policy impacts of 
different requirements below the maximum levels, and to recommend fees for implementation.  The 
recommendations will include suggestions for annual adjustments to the fees, illustrating the formulae 
that can account for economic changes while also being reasonably replicable by City staff on an ongoing 
basis.  

The deliverable for this task will include a recommended fee schedule for residential development, 
informed by the preceding technical analysis that will be incorporated by reference or as Appendices, and 
a summary implementation plan including recommended adjustment formulae.  The deliverable will be 
provided in draft for Project Team review, and then revised as necessary to present to City elected and 
appointed officials. 

Deliverables: Administrative Draft, Draft, and Final Report detailing findings of technical analysis and 
recommendations 

Task 5: Meetings and Presentations 

At key points during the Study, EPS will participate in discussions with City staff and development industry 
stakeholders.  In addition, EPS anticipates participating in one (1) public hearing before the City Council. 
EPS has provided an estimated cost for additional remote meeting attendance in the Cost Estimate section 
below. 

S c h e du le  

EPS understands from the City’s RFP that time is of the essence for this assignment. EPS is available to 
begin work immediately upon authorization to proceed and is prepared to complete Tasks 1 through 4 
within two (2) months of engagement. This schedule assumes that the contract with the City is executed 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



Capitola Affordable Housing Nexus Study 
EPS Proposal  12/15/2020 

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 11 \\EgnyteDrive\epsys\Shared\Proposals\Oakland\201000s\201117_Capitola Nexus Study\Proposal Materials\old\201117 EPS Proposal 12-15-2020 v3.docx 

by the end of January 2021, and that the required input and data from city staff is provided in a timely 
manner. The timing of the Task 5 public hearings and subsequent report revisions will depend on City 
meeting schedules. We anticipate finalizing a project schedule upon project initiation. In addition, as 
mentioned, EPS will be available to provide staff with regular progress reports as the project unfolds. 

5. PRICE 

Table 1 outlines a budget proposal for preparing the affordable housing nexus study for the City of 
Capitola. The budget is broken down by task. EPS anticipates that the basic scope for this project will 
require a budget not-to-exceed $33,300. This figure includes all consultant services, as well as direct 
costs for data and document production, which are billed at cost. All meetings are currently assumed to be 
conducted via teleconference. If additional meetings are requested, the cost per meeting will be $1,500 
for phone/videoconference meetings and $2,800 for in-person meetings. Additional tasks requested by the 
client will be billed on a time-and-materials basis at our standard hourly rates, and direct expenses are 
billed without mark-up. Charges are based on the amount of time actually spent. EPS provides monthly 
invoices for work performed, and anticipates payment within thirty (30) days. 

Table 1 Cost Estimate 

 

Task/ EPS Staff Cost Direct Total

Description Smith Traynor
Subtotal

 Costs [1] Cost

Principal-in-

Charge
Project 

Manager

Task 1: Project Initiation and Document Review 10 12 1 $5,510 $5,510

Task 2: Prepare Residential Nexus Studies 20 50 1 $16,350 $500 $16,850

Task 4: Fee Level Recommendation Report 6 18 2 $5,690 $5,690

Task 5: Meetings and Presentations 10 10 2 $5,250 $5,250

Total Hours 46 90 6

   Billing Rates [2] $300 $205 $100

Total Project Costs $32,800 $500 $33,300

Optional Task 3: Housing Fee Feasibility 
Analysis 6 18 1 $5,590 $500 $6,090

Optional Task 5: Additional Meeting and 
Revisions $1,500 per meeting

Total Project Costs Inc. Optional Tasks $39,890 $40,890

[2] Billing rates shown are applicable during 2020 and are subject to annual increases.

EPS Staff

Admin/

Production

[1] Expenses for data, report production, travel and other project related items are billed at cost. 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 

 

APPENDIX A: 

Staff Resumes 

 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



E
T

E
M
U
1

B
P
P

P
R
P
I
2

R
C
P

H
C
U
E
M
R

F
“
E
V
D
a

C
f
2
H
C

C
“
2
D

S
T
D
N
2

P
I
D
2

L
D
F
2

 

Economic & P
T h e  E c o n o m

Education 
Master of City 
University of P
1997 

Bachelor of Art
Psychology, Un
Pennsylvania, 

Previous Emp
Real Estate an
Planning Consu
nc., Annapolis

2000 

Retail Site Sele
Consultant, Pe
Philadelphia, P

Honors and A
Congress for th
Urbanism “Awa
Excellence” 20
Mueller Munici
Reuse Plan, Au

FTA/FHWA/APA
“Transportatio
Excellence Awa
Valley Metro R
Development O
and Strategies

California APA 
for Planning Im
2002—Sonoma
Housing Eleme
County, CA 

California AIA 
“Awhanee Awa
2002—Haywar
Design Plan 

Speaker—Best
Transit-Oriente
Development, 
National Confe
2008, 2010, an

Panelist—Urba
nstitute “Tran

Development M
2007, 2008, 20

Lecturer—Bay 
Dynamics, Lea
Francisco, Clas
2008, and 200

Planning Syste
m i c s  o f  L a n

 

Planning, 
ennsylvania, 

ts in 
niversity of 
1993 

ployment 
d Urban 
ultant, ZHA, 
s, MD, 1997–

ection 
p Boys, Inc., 

PA, 1996–1997

Awards 
he New 
ard of 
01—Robert 
pal Airport 
ustin, TX 

A 
n Planning 
ard” 2004—

Rail Station 
Opportunities 
s, Phoenix, AZ 

 “Award of Me
mplementation
a County 
ent, Sonoma 

and APA 
ard of Honor” 
rd Cannery Are

t Practices in 
ed 
 Rail~Volution 
erence, 2007, 
nd 2012 

n Land 
sit-Oriented 
Marketplace,” 
009, and 2010

 Area Housing 
adership San 
ss of 2007, 
09 

ems, Inc. 
n d  U s e  

Dar
Mana

7 

 

rit 
n” 

ea 

 

0 

 

ABOUT 
Darin Sm
advice to
use and 
strategie
policies, 
has parti
public/pr
transit-o
policies. 

EXPERTIS

Affordab
For San 
County, 
developm
affordab

Nonresid
For Sant
Alameda
industria
in some 

Housing
For Sono
documen
review o
new polic

Affordab
For the C
Beach an
to provid
circumst

Affordab
For the C
nonprofit
enhance 
productio

Homeste
For the C
provide l
recomme
financing

rin Sm
ging Princ

mith is a real 
o public and p
real estate de

es to promote
 in-lieu fees, j
icular experti
rivate develop
oriented devel
 

SE 

ble Housing N
Mateo, Moun
EPS has prep

ment and occ
le housing, an

dential Linka
ta Rosa, Petal
a, EPS has det
al developmen
cases drafted

g Element Up
oma County a
nting the inve
f the characte
cies, and doc

ble Housing P
Cities of Lagu
nd the County
de affordable 
tances, to pay

ble Housing P
Cities of San M
t housing dev
 the productio
on of market-

ead Preserva
City of Austin
local funding 
endations for 
g strategy for

mith 
ipal 

estate econom
private clients
evelopment.  
e developmen
jobs/housing 
se in urban re
pment and fin
lopment, and

Nexus Fee St
tain View, Su

pared nexus s
upancy of ne
nd recommen

age Fee Stud
luma, Rohner
termined the 
nt, recommen
d linkage fee 

dates 
and the Town 
entory of hous
er and effecti
umentation o

Programs an
na Beach, Gil
y of Sonoma,
 units within t
y fees in-lieu 

Policy Review
Mateo and Sa
velopers to ev
on of affordab
-rate housing

ation District
, EPS is provi
for affordable

r prioritizing h
r affordable ho

13

510.841.

mist with bro
s on the econ
 Darin has he

nt of affordabl
 linkage fees,
edevelopmen
nancing agree
d creating dow

tudies 
unnyvale, Plea
studies docum
ew market-rat
nding fees to 

ies 
rt Park, Sonom
 housing need
nded fee prog
ordinances th

 of Winters, E
sing supply a
iveness of exi
of available si

nd In-Lieu Fe
lroy, Larkspu
, EPS has pre
their market-
of providing a

ws 
anta Rosa, EP
valuate and re
ble housing w

g. 

t Analysis, Au
iding an analy
e housing, as
housing inves
ousing in gen

330 Broadway, S

.9190  dsmith@

oad experienc
nomic and fina
elped numero
le housing, in
, and develop
nt projects lar
ements, evalu
wntown revita

asanton, Sant
menting the li
te housing an
 mitigate thes

ma County, W
ds created by
grams to mitig
hat have been

EPS has prepa
and demand f
isting policies
tes for new h

ees 
r, San Bruno
pared ordinan
rate developm
affordable un

PS has worked
ecommend p

while minimiz

ustin, TX 
ysis of nation
s well as analy
tments and c

ntrifying neigh

Suite 450  Oakl

@epsys.com  ww

ce providing s
ancial dimens
ous jurisdictio
ncluding inclu
per exactions.
rge and small
uating opport
alization strat

ta Rosa, and 
nk between t

nd the deman
se impacts. 

Windsor, Gole
y new retail, o
gate those im
n adopted. 

ared Housing
for special pop
s, recommend
housing. 

, Goleta, and 
nces requiring
ments or, und

nits. 

d with for-pro
olicy options 
ing adverse a

wide “best-p
ysis and 
creating a sus
hborhoods. 

and, CA 94612 
ww.epsys.com 

 

strategic 
sions of land 
ons create 
sionary 
.  He also 
, negotiating 
tunities for 
tegies and 

 Sonoma 
the 
nd for 

eta, and 
office, and 

mpacts, and 

g Elements 
pulations, a 
dations for 

 Newport 
g developers 
der certain 

ofit and 
 that can 
affects on the

ractices” to 

stainable 

 

 

 

 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



E
T
Economic & P
T h e  E c o n o m

 
Education 

Master of Urb
Regional Plan
University of 
Angeles, 2017

Bachelor of A
American Stu
Economics, O
2009 

Previous Em

Senior Analys
Associates, LL
Francisco, CA

Research Ass
Housing, UCL
for Regional P
(2016-2017) 

Analyst, Fede
Group (FPG), 
DC (2013-20

Development
National Low-
Housing Coal
Washington, 
2013) 

Market Resea
LDS Consultin
Newton, MA (

Program Assi
Economic Dev
Council, June
2010) 

Planning Syste
m i c s  o f  L a n

ban and 
nning, 
California, Los
7 

Arts, Latin 
udies and 
Oberlin College

ployment 

st, Harvey Ros
LC, San 

A (2017-2019)

ociate – 
LA Lewis Cente
Policy Studies 
 

eral Practice 
 Washington, 
15) 

 Coordinator, 
-Income 
ition, 
DC (2011-

arch Associate
ng Group, 
(2010-2011) 

stant, Juneau 
velopment 
au, AK (2009-

ems, Inc. 
n d  U s e  

 

Kat
Senio

s 

e, 

se 

 

er 
 

, 

 

-

 
ABOUT 

Kate Tr
bringin
analysi
federal 
and city

SELECT

Santa C
EPS is 
Precise
feasibil
downto

Sunnyv
Analys
The Cit
Station
Plan int
compar
program
underst

Oaklan
The Me
assessi
the City
potenti
EPS cre
constru
feasibil
served 
increas

Mounta
In resp
occurrin
View en
require
that the

SELECT

Housin
In resp
approa
loan fea
ensure 

te Tra
or Associat

 

raynor joined 
g professiona
s, real estate
 pilot program
y budgeting. 

TED PROJECT E

Clara Downto
providing stra
 Plan for Dow
ity of various

own. 

vale Lawrenc
sis 
ty of Sunnyva
 Area under t
tended to spu
ring the impa
ms. EPS also 
tanding of the

nd Accessory
etropolitan Tra
ng barriers a
y of Oakland.
al financial in
eated develop
uction prototy
ity with acces
 to support th
se ADU constr

ain View Ant
ponse to SB 3
ng affordable
ngaged EPS t
ements agains
e cost of requ

TED PREVIOUS

ng and Urban
ponse to dema
ching expirat
asibility and f
 the long-term

aynor
e 

 Economic an
al experience 
e market rese
m implementa
 

EXPERIENCE 

own Precise 
ategic market
wntown Santa
s redevelopme

ce Station Ar

ale engaged E
the existing P
ur residential 
acts of develo
 tested feasib
e likelihood o

y Dwelling In
ansportation 
nd solutions t
 EPS was eng

ncentives, and
pment pro for
ypes in Oaklan
ss to financin
he City’s deve
ruction and re

ti Displaceme
30’s requirem

e housing mus
to model the f
st the econom
uired replacem

S EXPERIENCE 

n Developmen
and from own
ion, Kate sup
financial restr
m physical an

510.841.

r 

nd Planning S
 in affordable 
arch, and spa
ation, public-

 Plan 
t and develop
a Clara. EPS is
ent options fo

rea Plan Fisca

EPS to analyze
Plan as well a
 development
pment in the 

bility at varyin
of redevelopm

itiative 
Commission 
to developing
gaged to expl
d opportunitie
rmas at varyi
nd’s submark
g for existing
elopment of ta
educe displac

ent Study 
ments that ex
st be replaced
feasibility of t

mics of a rang
ment was like

 

nt (HUD) Aff
ners of HUD-s
pported HUD’s
ructurings of 
nd financial vi

1330 Broadway

.9190  ktraynor

ystems, Inc. 
 housing pres
atial analysis.
private partn

pment feasibi
s evaluating t
or an eight-bl

al Impact an

e the fiscal ef
s under a pro
t. EPS develo
 station area 

ng density lev
ment under th

sought techn
g Accessory D
lore existing f
es for below m
ng affordabili

kets and comp
g homeowners
argeted policy

cement risk. 

xisting income
d if demolishe
the state-man
ge of potentia
ely to be a de

fordable Hou
subsidized ho
s Office of Re
federally assi
iability of affo

, Suite 450  Oa

r@epsys.com  w

 (EPS) in Sum
servation, fisc
. Her experien
erships, hous

lity analysis t
the market an
ock area in th

nd Residual L

ffects attribut
oposed increa
ped static fisc
 under multip
vels, in order 
e different sc

nical assistanc
Dwelling Units
financing opti
market rate c
ity levels for a
pared develo
s. The work u
y initiatives d

e-restricted o
ed, the City o
ndated replac

al projects. EP
eterrent to red

using Preserv
ousing with m
ecapitalization
isted affordab
ordable rental

kland, CA 94612

www.epsys.com

mmer 2019, 
cal impact 
nce spans 
sing finance, 

to support a 
nd financial 
he historic 

Land Value 

table to the 
ased density 
cal models 

ple density 
to provide an

cenarios. 

ce in 
s (ADUs) in 
ions, 

construction. 
a range of 
pment 
ultimately 
designed to 

r naturally 
of Mountain 
cement 
PS determined
development.

vation 
mortgages 
n in analyzing
ble housing to
l housing. 

2 

m 

n 

d 
 

 
o 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

P
S

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

P
ro

p
o

sa
l  

(L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  

AMENDING THE 2020/2021 FISCAL YEAR CITY BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM BUDGET 

 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to adopt the 2020/2021 Fiscal Year Budget for all City funds 

and Capital Improvement Program; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council conducted budget study sessions, heard and considered 

public comments, had modified and proposed a budget accordingly, and on June 11, 2020 adopted 

such budget for the Fiscal Year July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2021; and  

 

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of the budget the City has been awarded Local Early Action 

Planning (LEAP) grant funding in the amount of $65,000; and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Capitola that the 2020/2021 Fiscal Year Budget is hereby amended increasing Community 

Development Department grant revenues and expenditures $65,000 as detailed on the attached 

budget amendment; and  

   
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is directed to enter the budget into 
the City's accounting records in accordance with appropriate accounting practices, and the City 
Manager, with the Finance Director's assistance, shall assure compliance therewith. 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Capitola on the 11th day of February 2021, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 
  

       _____________________ 
         Yvette Brooks, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________  ___ 
Chloe Woodmansee, City Clerk 
 
 
 

8.B.2

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

E
A

P
 G

ra
n

t 
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
R

es
o

  (
L

E
A

P
 G

ra
n

t 
U

p
d

at
e 

an
d

 A
ff

o
rd

ab
le

 H
o

u
si

n
g

 N
ex

u
s 

S
tu

d
y 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



8.B.3

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

E
A

P
 G

ra
n

t 
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

L
E

A
P

 G
ra

n
t 

U
p

d
at

e 
an

d
 A

ff
o

rd
ab

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 N

ex
u

s 
S

tu
d

y 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2021

FROM: Public Works Department

SUBJECT: Receive a Presentation on the Rispin Park Project and Approve a Resolution 
Authorizing the Public Works Department to Submit a Grant Application to 
California State Parks 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the proposed conceptual plan for the Rispin Park Project 
and adopt the proposed resolution authorizing the submission of an application to California 
State Parks for Proposition 68 Park Development Funds with awarded funds to be used for the 
project.

BACKGROUND: In September 2020 the City Council adopted a resolution authorizing staff to 
apply for a per capita grant through the voter approved Proposition 68 administered by 
California State Parks. That application was for funding for the Rispin Park project and has been 
approved; grant contract documents are being prepared by the State. A second Proposition 68 
grant program, which will be awarded on a competitive basis, has been announced by State 
Parks. The Proposition 68 competitive grants are intended to facilitate park development. Staff 
recommends applying for the competitive Proposition 68 grant to complete funding for the
Rispin Park project. Adoption of a resolution is required as part of the grant application which is 
due on March 12, 2021.

DISCUSSION: The competitive grant guidelines require a series of public workshops be held on 
the project. The Rispin Park project has been in development since 2015. Two workshops were 
held in March and April of 2015, and a public hearing was held during the City Council meeting 
on May 28, 2015, at which the workshop feedback was presented, and Council approved a 
conceptual design. In the fall of 2015 and summer of 2016 two pedestrian improvement projects
were completed to provide accessible paths of travel to the Rispin property. Since these 
improvements were completed the final park development has been delayed due to funding 
shortages. 

With the availability of Proposition 68 parks grants, the Rispin Park project has been revitalized. 
In anticipation of this competitive grant opportunity, Public Works hosted two additional public 
webinar workshops to review the 2015 design concepts and receive additional public input. 
These workshops were held on November 16 and December 2, 2020; 20 to 25 interested 
parties attended each meeting. Included among the suggestions made at the workshops were: 
improving the lighting along the pathway to the Nob Hill shopping center and incorporating some 
rose vines and other plants that represent the original gardens. These two elements have now 
been incorporated in the design plans. The project plans were last fully updated in 2019 and an 

8.C

Packet Pg. 88



Rispin Grant Appliation 2021 
February 11, 2021

excerpt of these plans are included as Attachment 1. Project designer Mike Arnone will also 
present project details at the meeting. Staff recommends that the City Council provide input into 
the elements of the project and approve the overall project design.

At the two most recent workshops, objections were raised over naming the park after Henry 
Allen Rispin. At this point, staff has focused on the project design and funding, and not initiated 
research into the issues raised at the workshop. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The funding provided by the first per capita Proposition 68 grant requires a 
local match of 20% of the total project costs.  There is no match requirement for the competitive 
grant. Staff recommends applying for maximum grant amount of $482,000 from the competitive 
grant program. The following is a breakdown of the current project budget:

Current 
Budget

Proposed Budget with 
Competitive Grant award

Item Amount Amount Difference

Per capita grant $178,000 $178,000 $0 

General Fund $456,290 $165,000 (min 20% match) ($291,290)

Competitive grant $482,000 $482,000 

Total available funding $634,290 $825,000 $190,710 

Project Estimate $825,000 $825,000 $0 

Shortfall ($190,710) $0 

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Rispin Park Plans (2019) (PDF)

Report Prepared By:  Steve Jesberg
Public Works Director

Reviewed and Forwarded by:

8.C

Packet Pg. 89



Rispin Grant Appliation 2021 
February 11, 2021

RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA APPROVING THE 
APPLICATION FOR STATEWIDE PARK DEVELOPMENT AND COMMUNITY 

REVITALIZATION PROGRAM GRANT FUNDS

WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated the 
responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of the 
Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Grant Program, setting up 
necessary procedures governing application; and

WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 
Recreation require the Applicant to certify by resolution the approval of the
application before submission of said application to the State; and

WHEREAS, successful Applicants will enter into a contract with the State of California 
to complete the Grant Scope project;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Capitola hereby:

APPROVES THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE RISPIN PARK PROJECT; AND

1. Certifies that said Applicant has or will have available, prior to commencement of any
work on the project including in this application, the sufficient funds to complete the 
project; and

2. Certifies that if the project is awarded, the Applicant has or will have sufficient funds 
to operate and maintain the project, and

3. Certifies that the Applicant has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General 
Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Grant Administration Guide; and

4. Delegates the authority to the Public Works Director to conduct all negotiations, sign 
and submit all documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements, 
amendments, and payment requests, which may be necessary for the completion of 
the Grant Scope; and

5. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

6. Will consider promoting inclusion per Public Resources Code §80001(b)(8 A-G).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Capitola

8.C

Packet Pg. 90



Rispin Grant Appliation 2021 
February 11, 2021

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 11h day of February
2021, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:
_____________________
Yvette Brooks, Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________
Chloe Woodmansee, City Clerk

8.C

Packet Pg. 91



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

is
p

in
 P

ar
k 

P
la

n
s 

(2
01

9)
  (

R
is

p
in

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lia

ti
o

n
 2

02
1)


	Agenda Packet
	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. New Public Works Employee
	Printout: New Public Works Employee

	B. Presentation- CPD Officer of the Year
	Printout: Presentation- CPD Officer of the Year


	3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	6. CITY COUNCIL / STAFF COMMENTS
	7. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approve Council Minutes
	Printout: Approve Council Minutes
	1. 1-28-2021 draft

	B. PC minutes
	Printout: PC minutes
	1. 12-3-20 Action
	2. 1-21-2021 Action

	C. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. 1-8-21 Check Register
	2. 1-15-21 Check Register
	3. 1-22-21 Check Register
	4. 1-29-21 Check Register

	D. Amend Conflict of Interest Code
	Printout: Amend Conflict of Interest Code

	E. COVID-19 Emergency- Update 19
	Printout: COVID-19 Emergency- Update 19


	8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Capitola Historical Museum 2020 Annual Report
	Printout: Capitola Historical Museum 2020 Annual Report
	1. Capitola Museum Annual Report 2020

	B. LEAP Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study Contract
	Printout: LEAP Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study Contract
	1. EPS Affordable Housing Nexus Study Proposal
	2. LEAP Grant Budget Amendment Reso
	3. LEAP Grant Budget Amendment

	C. Rispin Grant Appliation 2021
	Printout: Rispin Grant Appliation 2021
	1. Rispin Park Plans (2019)


	9. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · New Public Works Employee
	2.B · Presentation- CPD Officer of the Year
	7.A · Approve Council Minutes
	7.A.1 · 1-28-2021 draft

	7.B · PC minutes
	7.B.1 · 12-3-20 Action
	7.B.2 · 1-21-2021 Action

	7.C · Approval of City Check Registers
	7.C.1 · 1-8-21 Check Register
	7.C.2 · 1-15-21 Check Register
	7.C.3 · 1-22-21 Check Register
	7.C.4 · 1-29-21 Check Register

	7.D · Amend Conflict of Interest Code
	7.E · COVID-19 Emergency- Update 19
	8.A · Capitola Historical Museum 2020 Annual Report
	8.A.1 · Capitola Museum Annual Report 2020

	8.B · LEAP Grant Update and Affordable Housing Nexus Study Contract
	8.B.1 · EPS Affordable Housing Nexus Study Proposal
	8.B.2 · LEAP Grant Budget Amendment Reso
	8.B.3 · LEAP Grant Budget Amendment

	8.C · Rispin Grant Appliation 2021
	8.C.1 · Rispin Park Plans (2019)



